
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

June 20, 2024 
6:30 PM 

Bradford County Courthouse 
945 North Temple Avenue 

Starke, Florida 32091 
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Chair to call meeting to order. 
 

2. Public Hearing – Zoning – Randy Andrews, Director 
 

A. Consider Approval of S240502A (Timber Ranch FL, LLC) – Land Use Change 
for Bradford County Parcel Number 01145-0-00500 
 
Timber Ranch FL seeks approval to amend the Future Land Use plan Map of the 
Bradford County Comprehensive Plan, as amended; relating to an amendment of 
Ten (10) acres , more or less, of land, pursuant to an application, S240502A, by 
the property owner of said acreage, under the amendment procedures established 
in Sections 163.3161 through 163.3248, Florida Statutes, providing for changing 
the Land Use classification FROM AGRICULTURAL TO COMMERCIAL. 
 
Please call for public comments prior to a motion and a vote. 
 

B. Consider approval of Z24-04 (Timber Rance FL, LLC) – Zoning Change for 
Bradford County Parcel Number 01145-0-00500 
 
Timber Ranch FL, LLC seeks approval to amend the Official Zoning Atlas of 
Bradford County, Florida, relating to the Rezoning of Ten (10) acres, more of 
less, pursuant to an application, Z24-04, by the property owner of said acreage, 
providing for Changing the Zoning District FROM AGRICULTURAL-2 TO 
COMMERCIAL INTENSIVE (CI). 
 
Please call for public comments prior to a motion and a vote. 
 

C. Consider Approval of S240502B (Timber Ranch FL, LLC) – Land Use Change 
for Bradford County Parcel Number 01151-0-00000 
 
Timber Ranch FL, LLC seeks approval to amend the Future Land Use Plan Map 
of the Bradford County Comprehensive Plan, as amended; relating to an 
amendment of Ten (10) acres, more or less, of land, pursuant to an application, 
S240502B, by the property owner of said acreage, under the amendment 
procedures established in Sections 163.3161 through 163.3248, Florida Statutes, 

ACTION 



providing for changing the land Use classification FROM AGRICULTURAL TO 
COMMERCIAL. 
 
Please call for public comments prior to a motion and a vote. 
 

D. Consider Approval of Z24-05 (Timber Ranch FL, LLC) – Zoning Change for 
Bradford County Parcel Number 01151-0-00000. 
 
Timber Ranch FL, LLC seeks approval to amend the Official Zoning Atlas of 
Bradford County, Florida, relating to the Rezoning of Ten (10) acres, more or 
less, pursuant to a n application, Z24-05, by he property owner of said acreage, 
providing for Changing the Zoning District from AGRICULTURAL-2 TO 
COMMERCIAL INTENSIVE (CI). 
 
Please call for public comments prior to a motion and a vote. 

 
3. Public Comments 

 
 Three (3) minutes per speaker; 
 Comments will not be accepted after the meeting begins; 
 State your name and address into the record before addressing the board; 
 Address your questions to the board, not county staff; 
 Refrain from demands for an immediate board response; and 
 No boisterous behavior, personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks. 

 
4. Presentation of Life Saving Awards – American Police Hall of Fame and Museum 

 
5. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 
A. Meeting Minutes from 04-18-2024 
B. Meeting Minutes from 05-16-2024 
C. Approval of Contract with Anderson Columbia for the Resurfacing of CR 223, 

from SR 16 to US 301. (FDOT SCOP-funded project $4,468,194.14) 
D. Acceptance of EMS State Matching Grant Award for $107,914.35. (State funded: 

$97,122.92; County match: $10,791.44) 
E. Approval of the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 

Program for $48,339. 
i. Certificate of Participation for Fiscal Year 2023 

ii. 51% Letter from BoCC 
iii. Lobbying, Debarment, and Drug Free Workplace Certification  

 
6. Agreement Between The Alachua Board of County Commissioners and The  

Bradford County Board of County Commissioners Regarding Reimbursement of 
Disallowed Costs for CSNCF FY 2017-18, 2018-19, and 2019-20 ($113,465.83) 
 

7. Bradford Soil and Water Conservation District Presentation Regarding Aquatic  
Information 

ACTION 

ACTION 



Plant Removal at the Lake Sampson Effluents Into the Sampson River Canal. 
 

8. Clerk Reports – Denny Thompson, Clerk to the Board and Clerk of the Circuit Court 
 

9. Sheriff Reports – Gordon Smith, Sheriff 
 

10. County Manager Reports – County Manager, Scott Kornegay 
 

11. County Attorney Reports – Richard Komando 
 

12. Commissioner’s Comments 
 

13. Chair’s Comments 
 

 
NOTICE: 
Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, notice is hereby provided that, if a person decides 
to appeal any decision made by the Board of County Commissioners of Bradford County, 
Florida with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he or she will need a 
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
 
 

 
 

























































































Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  June 20, 2024 
    
AGENDA ITEM_       Meeting minutes from 04-18-2024.  
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Clerk’s Office  
 
 
 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
April 18, 2024 

6:30 P.M.  
Bradford County Courthouse 

945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Commissioner District 1 – Chair Carolyn Spooner  

Commissioner District 4 – Vice-Chair Danny Riddick 
Commissioner District 2 – Kenny Thompson  
Commissioner District 3 – Joseph C. Dougherty 
Commissioner District 5 – Diane Andrews 

PRESS PRESENT: None 
 
STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Manager Scott Kornegay; Executive Assistant Amanda 
Brown; County Attorney Rich Komando; Clerk of Court Denny Thompson; Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel 
Rhoden; Sheriff Gordon Smith; Col. Brad Smith; David Weeks; Community Development Director Kelly 
Canady; Solid Waste Director Bennie Jackson; Chief Ben Carter; Zoning Director Randy Andrews; and Public 
Works Director Jason Dodds 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Spooner called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  
 

2. PUBLIC HEARING – ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCES – RANDY ANDREWS, ZONING 
DIRECTOR.  

 
A. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP OF THE 

BRADFORD COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO AN 
AMENDMENT OF 50 OR LESS ACRES OF LAND, PURSUANT TO AN 
APPLICATION, S240312A, (S. PERKINS; PARCEL 04757-0-00000). 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing; there being no response, the public hearing was closed.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Vice-Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Andrews to approve 
S240312A. 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

B. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED, 
RELATING TO THE REZONING OF LESS THAN TEN CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF 
LAND, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, Z 24-01, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing; there being no response, the public hearing was closed.  
 
Discussion: none 
 



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 2 of 7 
 
 
 

It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Vice-Chair Riddick to approve Z 24-
01 as read.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

C. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP OF THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO AN 
AMENDMENT OF 50 OR LESS ACRES OF LAND PURSUANT TO AN 
APPLICATION, S240312B, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing; there being no response, the public hearing was closed.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Andrews and SECONDED by Vice-Chair Riddick to approve 
S240312B as read.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

D. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED; 
RELATING TO THE REZONING OF LESS THAN TEN CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF 
LAND, PURSUANT TO AL APPLICATION, Z 24-02, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing; there being no response, the public hearing was closed.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Andrews and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to approve Z 
24-02 as read.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

E. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP OF THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, AS AMENDED; RELATING TO AN 
AMENDMENT OF 50 OR LESS ACRES OF LAND, PURSUANT TO AN 
APPLICATION, S240326A, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing for public comments.  
 
 
 
 



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 3 of 7 
 
 
 

Public Comments 
• Jerry Dabkowski, Professional Engineer (Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering), representing the 

City of Hampton. Mr. Dabkowski expressed no objections to the ordinance but requested that the City of 
Hampton be involved in the site plan review.  

 
After public comments, the public hearing was closed.  
 
Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Andrews to approve 
S240326A as read.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

F. AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING ATLAS OF THE 
BRADFORD COUNTY LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, AS AMENDED; 
RELATING TO THE REZONING OF TEN OR MORE CONTIGUOUS ACRES OF 
LAND, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION, Z 24-03, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the ordinance title into the record. Chair Spooner opened the 
public hearing for public comments.  
 
Public Comments 

• Jerry Dabkowski, Professional Engineer (Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering), representing the 
City of Hampton. Mr. Dabkowski expressed no objections to the ordinance but requested that the City of 
Hampton be involved in the traffic analysis as part of the site plan review.  

 
After public comments, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Vice-Chair Riddick to approve Z 24-
03 as read.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - none 
 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
A. MEETING MINUTES FROM 03-21-2024. 
B. JOINT WORKSHOP MINUTES FROM 03-21-2024. 
C. RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT REGISTER(S) FROM 02-23-24 THROUGH 04-03-24. 
D. RENEWAL OF MEDICAL DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

MATTHEW R. ODOM, M.D. 
 



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 4 of 7 
 
 
 

Discussion: none 
 
It was MOVED by Vice-Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve the 
consent agenda.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

5. MANAGED CARE OPTION (MCO) FUNDS.  
 
Chair Spooner recognized Chief Ben Carter to present items A and B.  
 

A. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF USE OF MCO FUNDS FOR STATION 10 (SPEEDVILLE 
LIVING QUARTERS) (NOT TO EXCEED $50,000). 

 
Chief Carter requested authorization to use up to $50,000 of MCO monies for Station 10 living quarter expenses 
that are not inside the 5-foot construction zone covered by $250,000 in donated funds. He advised that there is 
$479,135 MCO funds available.  
 
Discussion: 

• Intended use of MCO funds. Chief Carter responded that there are no restrictions on the usage of the 
monies other than the fact that it cannot be used as a county match to participate in the program.   

• Requested MCO funds will be used to cover the cost of the septic tank, electrical and water hookups, 
and anything else needed outside of the 5-foot construction zone.  

• Based on direction from Alachua County and confirmation from Building Official Rod Crawford, the 
existing septic tank will not meet the needs of the new living quarters.  

• Cost of a new septic tank is approximately $9,000. 
• Donated items to Station 10 living quarters.  

 
It was MOVED by Vice-Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Andrews to use MCO funds 
for Station 10 not to exceed $50,000. 
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 

B. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF USE OF MCO FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A NEW 
AMBULANCE IN THE 2024-2025 FISCAL YEAR. 

 
Chief Carter requested authorization to use the remaining available MCO funds to purchase a new ambulance. 
He advised that the production process will span over multiple years. As such he needs to obtain a purchase 
order in fiscal year 2023-2024 to begin the buildout of the ambulance and that the finished product will be 
available next fiscal year 2024-2025. 
 
Discussion: 

• Fire Rescue’s current fleet has only one ambulance with less than 250,000 miles.  
• All ambulances, with the exception of one new ambulance, have been remounted.  
• Fire Rescue averages approximately 65,000 miles per ambulance, per year.  



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 5 of 7 
 
 
 

• Estimated cost for a new ambulance is $300,000-$350,000. 
• County received a fire truck through legislative appropriations.  
• Funding options to purchase a new ambulance – reserve for contingency fund or MCO funds. In order to 

leave enough money in the reserve for a contingency fund to use as a county match in the MCO 
program, it is advised to use MCO monies to buy the new ambulance.  

• Concern expressed with approving a blanket amount for a new ambulance.  
• Support expressed with approving the request.  

 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Vice Chair Riddick to use MCO funds 
to purchase a new ambulance.  
 
Motion Carries 4-1 (Chair Spooner dissenting vote) 
 

6. DONATION TO BRADFORD COUNTY FIRE RESCUE (BCFR) – COMMISSIONER EMILY 
HOFFMAN, CITY OF LAWTEY.  

 
Chair Spooner recognized Lawtey City Commissioner Emily Hoffman who presented a donation check in the 
amount of $15,480 BCFR. Ms. Hoffman expressed appreciation to BCFR for all they do in the City of Lawtey.  
 
Discussion:  

• Chief Carter shared that BCFR will use the donated funds to purchase new bunker gear and fire nozzles.  
• Appreciation expressed to the City of Lawtey for the donation.  

 
7. CLERK REPORTS – DENNY THOMPSON - none 

 
8. SHERIFF REPORTS – GORDON SMITH  

 
Sheriff Smith shared that his office now has an app called Bradford County Sheriff’s Office that can be 
downloaded on phones for the latest updates and alerts.  
 
Discussion: 

• Appreciation expressed to the Sheriff’s team for organizing an event to recognize his dispatchers.  
  

9. COUNTY MANAGER REPORTS – SCOTT KORNEGAY 
A. STATE OF BRADFORD COUNTY – ANNUAL UPDATE.  

 
Mr. Kornegay presented a PowerPoint presentation on the state of the county, highlighting the following:  

• Reviewed the county’s mission and vision statements. 
• Build Manager and Commissioner Relationships 
• Building Public Trust and Open Communication 
• Update and Amend the Board, Personnel and Purchasing Policies – should be available in the coming 

meetings for approval. 
• Insurance Efficiencies 
• Solid Waste Assessment 



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 6 of 7 
 
 
 

• Surplus Property 
• Keystone Heights Airport Access Road 
• Public Works Gas Tax Projects; FDOT Projects; and other Projects  
• Project Douglas – Acquisition of 100k square foot warehouse for economic development.  
• BCFR Year In Review – Data Calls; Partnerships; Programs; Station 10 and Station 20/90 Living 

Quarters; Community Resource Paramedicine Program  
• Cypress Run Boat Ramp  
• Community Development (SHIP) stats 
• Library stats and programs 
• UF/IFAS Bradford County Extension stats and programs 
• Planning and Zoning Departments stats and developments  
• Statewide engagement  
• Training and Professional Growth Opportunities 
• Future plans 

 
Discussion: 

• Positive comments of county leadership. 
• Expressions of gratitude for Mr. Kornegay's participation in the APA Conference  

 
10. COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS – RICH KOMANDO   

 
Mr. Komando advised the board that this would be the appropriate time to discuss how it wants to conduct an 
evaluation of Mr. Kornegay’s performance.  
 
Discussion: 

• Comments stating that it is customary for agencies to perform a written evaluation.  
• Comments expressing satisfaction with Mr. Kornegay’s performance.  
• Interest expressed in accepting the county manager’s report as the evaluation.  
• Mr. Komando suggested that the board talk to the county manager both individually and as a board 

about a merit increase, given the board's positive input on Mr. Kornegay's performance.  
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to meet 
individually with the county manager to evaluate his performance and come back as a board to discuss a 
merit increase.  
 
Motion Carries 5-0 
 
Chair Spooner recognized Chief Carter who reported that next week his department will be hosting the 
Northeast Regional Fire Association Annual Meeting at the Charley E. Johns Conference Center, where over 60 
fire chiefs will be in attendance. 
 
 
 
 



April 18, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 7 of 7 
 
 
 

11. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Andrews 

• In honor of March's Employee Appreciation Day, Commissioner Andrews asked the board to think 
about organizing an employee appreciation day. She suggested that the board take up a donation to fund 
the event and invite other constitutional officers to participate.  

 
Discussion  

• Comments in support of scheduling a county employee appreciation day. 
• Recommendation that the commission take part in all planned appreciation events that each department 

and/or office may host.  
• Supportive remarks for planning an occasion similar to Sheriff Smith and Chief Carter's 

Dispatchers/Communications Appreciation Celebration. 
• Concerns expressed about assigning the event's planning to county management staff, citing their 

already packed schedules as a reason.   
• Comments in support of the board organizing the employee appreciation function.  

 
 

12. CHAIR’S COMMENTS 
• On May 4th at 1pm. The Concerned Citizens will host a May Pole celebration at the RJE 

ballfield.  
• On May 27 at 9 a.m. in Lincoln City, a cancer walk is planned, beginning at C.R. 100. 
• Chemours' cancer walk for the American Cancer Society brought in almost $26,000. 
• The HUB in Hampton is hosting a ribbon cutting.  
• Chemours will host a learning luncheon on May 9th from 11:30 am to 1pm at the Charley E. 

Johns Center.  
 
ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:42 a.m.  
 
        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
               
        CAROLYN SPOONER, CHAIR 
ATTEST: 
 
        
DENNY THOMPSON, CLERK TO THE BOARD 
       
MINUTES PREPARED BY:          
     RACHEL RHODEN, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on:       



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET (AIIS) 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  June 20, 2024 
    
AGENDA ITEM_       Meeting minutes from 05-16-2024.  
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Clerk’s Office  
 
 
 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
May 16, 2024 

6:30 P.M.  
Bradford County Courthouse 

945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, Florida 32091 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Commissioner District 1 – Chair Carolyn Spooner  

Commissioner District 4 – Vice-Chair Danny Riddick 
Commissioner District 2 – Kenny Thompson   
Commissioner District 3 – Joseph C. Dougherty 

 
BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:  Commissioner District 5 – Diane Andrews 
 
PRESS PRESENT: none 
 
STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Manager Scott Kornegay; Executive Assistant Amanda 
Brown; County Attorney Rich Komando; Clerk of Court Denny Thompson; Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel 
Rhoden; Finance Director Dana LaFollette; Sheriff Gordon Smith; Col. Brad Smith; Emergency Management 
Director, Lt. Brad Witt; Solid Waste Director Bennie; Public Works Director Jason Dodds; Fire Rescue Chief 
Ben Carter; Division Chief Dylan Rodgers; Library Assistant Director Kimberly Crawford; and Tax Collector 
Teresa Phillips.  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Spooner called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.  
 
Chair Spooner advised that item 3(C) will be pulled from the consent agenda and that a resolution would be 
walked on to the agenda under the county manger reports.  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
• Carol Mosely  
• Paul Still  
• Vyunda Strong 

 
3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. MEETING MINUTES FROM 04-02-2024. 
B. AMEND SOMETHING PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED IN THE MARCH 5, 2024 MEETING 

MINUTES, UNDER ITEM “2(B) – ROAD CLOSURE JOHN PATTON”, THE LAST 
NAME SHOULD BE SPELLED “PATON”.  

C. REQUEST FOR PROMULGATION LETTER OF COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN. (PULLED FROM THE AGENDA) 

D. INVOICE FROM ESO SOLUTIONS, INC. FOR EMS/FIRE REPORT SOFTWARE AS 
SOLE SOURCE - $35,285.55. 

E. RETROACTIVE APPROVAL OF CORRECTION OF ERROR TO WORDING IN CTPA 
GRANT LETTER ORIGINALLY APPROVED AT THE 05-07-2024 REGULAR BOCC 
MEETING.  

 
 
 
 
 



May 16, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 2 of 6 
 
 
 

It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
the consent agenda with the exception of item C.  
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 

4. CONSIDER A COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT (COLA) FOR BOARD EMPLOYEES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 
Discussion: 

• Explore reducing the millage rate.  
• Comments in support of a 5% COLA.  
• Clerk Thompson answered in the affirmative when asked if the county could afford a COLA, provided 

that there were no additional significant operational costs. He advised that property values will likely 
increase which can help offset the cost of raises.  

• Clerk Thompson referenced COLA adjustments for Social Security recipients, stating that although they 
get the lowest benefits, they have gotten a COLA in recent years as a result of inflation.  

• Comments in support of a COLA for regular staff, excluding management and higher salaried staff. 
• Explore revenue streams for fire rescue operations. 

 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to give a 5% 
raise.  
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 

5. UF/IFAS EXTENSION BRADFORD COUNTY 2023 YEAR REVIEW 
 
Mr. Kornegay announced that Dr. Sanders is unavailable and will reschedule her presentation.   
 

6. FIRE ASSESSMENT PRESENTATION – JEFF RACKLEY WITH STANTEC 
 
Chair Spooner recognized Jeff Rackley who presented a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the 
following:  

• Fire assessments are non-ad valorem fees used directly to fund fire protection.  
• Legal requirements: 1) the property assessed must derive a special benefit from the service provided; 

and 2) the assessment must be fairly and reasonably apportioned among properties that receive the 
special benefit.  

• Required exemptions are governmental properties and agricultural properties except for residential 
dwelling on agricultural property.  

• Optional exemptions include churches, non-profits, charitable and disabled veterans.  
• Calls for service methodology used for a fire assessment.  
• Assessment rates are calculated by property class: residential – per dwelling unit; non-residential – 

square foot; and vacant lands – per parcel.  
• Approach used to calculate assessment: call allocation; calculation cost of service based on FY 2024 

budget; and billable units based on data from the property appraiser’s office.  



May 16, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 3 of 6 
 
 
 

• Fiscal-Year 2025 fire assessment revenue scenarios: 100% - $4,039,000; 80% - $3,285,000; 60% - 
2,424,000; 50% - 2,021,000; and 25% - $1,017,000. 

• Single family fire assessment rates from other counties.  
• Implementation timeline and notice requirements.  

 
Discussion: 

• Inquiry on how fire operation costs were deducted from the overall fire rescue budget. Mr. Rackley 
responded that his team examined staff and operating expenses to make a good faith determination of 
what was fire and what was EMS.  

• In response to the question of why lots were assigned a flat rate, Mr. Rackley replied that his team's 
analysis of all the variables - contiguous lands, submerged areas, and agriculture exemptions, showed 
that a flat rate produced the greatest outcome for the county as a whole and mitigated the effects of the 
agriculture exemption. 

• Residential property flat rate of $309. 
• Regarding primary structures, Mr. Rackley clarified that lean-to shelters, pole barns, and detached 

garages are generally not categorized as primary structures. He said that whether or not the structures 
will be assessed would depend on how the properties are recorded in the data kept by the property 
appraiser. Furthermore, he advised that the board does not necessarily have to follow the property 
appraiser’s property classifications; however, he cautioned on granting numerous exemptions which 
could undermine the assessment methodology.  

• Primary structures will be assessed unless there is an exemption.  
• Before the assessment is placed on the tax bill, the board or county manager can correct property data. It 

is still possible to make corrections after the assessment is placed on the tax bill.  
• The board will need to adopt an initial resolution setting the preliminary rates sometime in June or early 

July. Notices of the preliminary rate will be mailed (20 days before final hearing). The board will set a 
public hearing to set the final rates in August-September. The final rate can be lowered from the initial 
rate, but it cannot be increased.   

• Mr. Rackley stated that the purpose of this evening’s presentation was to provide the board with 
information and get directions on the board's wish to proceed or not with an assessment. Several 
processes must be completed before everything must be finalized by September 15th. 

• In response to how notices will be mailed, Mr. Rackley stated that if it cannot be handled locally, he can 
recommend a company.   

 
7. AMBULANCE WAIT TIME FEE SCHEDULE 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Chief Carter who presented the board with a fee schedule to recoup staff wait time at 
hospitals. Chief Carter shared that he would charge hospitals a base rate of $168 for the first 20 minutes and $63 
every quarter thereafter. After each hour passes, the base rate is re-charged with the quarter rates following. 
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
the proposed fee schedule. 
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 



May 16, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 

8. CLERK REPORTS – DENNY THOMPSON  
 
Clerk Thompson reported that his office expects to receive budget requests in the coming days, at which point 
the county can anticipate needed revenue to cover budgeted expenses.  
 

9. SHERIFF REPORTS – GORDON SMITH 
A. PROCLAMATION DECLARING MAY 2024 AS LAW ENFORCEMENT 

APPRECIATION MONTH.  
 

Chair Spooner recognized Sheriff Smith who presented a proclamation for board approval. He shared that a law 
enforcement memorial event will be held at Northside (Northside Baptist Church) on Thursday, May 23, 2024 
at 6:00 p.m.   
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Dougherty and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to approve 
the proclamation. 
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 

10. COUNTY MANAGER REPORTS – SCOTT KORNEGAY  
A. REQUEST TO APPLY FOR HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (HMGP) 

FUNDING. 
 

Mr. Kornegay introduced Lt. Brad Witt who presented an HMGP grant opportunity to retrofit and upgrade the 
Sampson Lake box culvert (3-pipes) with automated gates at an estimated cost of $953,100. While HMGP 
typically requires a 25% match, Lt. Witt reported that the State of Florida put into place appropriations for 
fiscally constrained counties to apply for a waiver. He sought permission from the board to apply for the grant 
and match waiver.  
 
It was MOVED by Commissioner Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to apply for 
the HMGP funding.  
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 
 WALK ON AGENDA ITEM: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA APPROVING AN AMENDMENT 
TO A STATE FUNDED GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND CONSTRUCTION 
ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION FOR ROAD CONSTRUCTION OF NORTHWEST 53RD 
AVENUE / NORTHWEST 219TH STREET / NORTHWEST 41ST AVENUE FROM COUNTY 
ROAD 225 TO NORTHWEST COUNTY ROAD 225; PROVIDING DIRECTION TO STAFF; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Komando to read the resolution title into the record.  
 



May 16, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 

It was MOVED by Vice Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Dougherty to approve the 
resolution as read. 
 
Motion Carries 4-0 
 

11. COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS – RICHARD KOMANDO  
A. COUNTY MANAGER EVALUATION FORM 

 
Chair Spooner recognized Mr. Komando who presented the board with a blank form to evaluate the county 
manager’s job performance. He shared that before the board are comments/suggestions from Commissioner 
Andrews concerning the evaluation form. Mr. Komando asked the board to give directions on how it desired to 
proceed with an evaluation form. 
 
Discussion:  

• Remarks recommending that section 4 A-Q of the county manager contract duties be included on the 
assessment form. 

• Comments in favor of leaving the assessment form unchanged. 
• Timeframe for responses to be emailed to Mr. Komando. The board was in CONSENSUS to allow 2-

weeks (May 30, 2024) to complete the evaluation.  
 
It was MOVED by Vice Chair Riddick and SECONDED by Commissioner Thompson to leave the form 
as is and make your own comments. 
 
Motion Carries 3-1 (Chair Spooner dissenting vote)  
 

12. COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS  
 

13. CHAIRS COMMENTS  
• Encouraged everyone to help keep students safe during summer break.  
• Offered congratulations to the graduating senior class.  
• Announced that public works will begin to address county ditches and roadways when 

conditions allow.  
• Acknowledged the passing of former Governor of Florida Bob Graham. 
• Positive remarks on the Hampton HUB grand opening.  

 
All commissioners acknowledged Colson Douglas, who was in the audience, on making the dean’s list and 
recently graduating from law school.  
 
Mr. Kornegay reminded the board to complete the Form 6 by July 1, 2024. 
 
ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.  
 
 
 
 



May 16, 2024 
BoCC Meeting Minutes  
 

Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 

        BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
               
        CAROLYN SPOONER, CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
DENNY THOMPSON, CLERK TO THE BOARD 
       
 
MINUTES PREPARED BY:          
     RACHEL RHODEN, CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on:       



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     June 20, 2024     
    
AGENDA ITEM Approval of Contract with Anderson Columbia for the 

Resurfacing of CR 225 from SR 16 to US 301.  
 
DEPARTMENT:    Public Works 
 
PURPOSE: Contract for Resurfacing for FDOT Financial Project 

Number 443409-1-54-01. 
 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $4,468,194.14 Funded by FDOT SCOP 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 105-26-541-63130-00  
  



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     June 20, 2024   
    
AGENDA ITEM Acceptance of EMS State Matching Grant Award 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Fire Rescue 
 
PURPOSE: Approval to accept the State EMS Matching Grant Award in 

the amount of $ 107,914.35 for new ventilators. The state 
portion of the award is $97,122.92 and the County match 
amount is $10,791.44.  

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $10,791.44 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #):  
  



Organization

State

Award

Grantee

Match

Project

Total Summary of Approved Project

Advent Health 57,766.61$              19,255.54$              77,022.15$              Manikin

Advent Health 27,513.75$              9,171.25$                36,685.00$              Cardiac Monitor/Defibrillator Mounting System

Alachua County 84,000.00$              28,000.00$              112,000.00$            Ventilators

Baker County 45,000.00$              5,000.00$                50,000.00$              SUV/Crew Cab Pickup Truck/Vehicle for MIH-CP

Baker County 11,232.00$              1,248.00$                12,480.00$              Ultrasound

Bradford County Fire Rescue 97,122.92$              10,791.44$              107,914.35$            Ventilators

Broward Dept of Fire Rescue and EMS 58,050.93$              19,350.31$              77,401.24$              Ventilators

Calhoun County 104,931.00$            11,659.00$              116,590.00$            Power Cot with Power Load

Century Ambulance 22,202.86$              2,466.98$                24,669.84$              Ventilators

City of Brooksville 18,750.00$              6,250.00$                25,000.00$              

Utility Vehicle Ambulance/EMS/Fire Quick Response 

Vehicle

City of Davie 30,667.91$              10,222.64$              40,890.54$              LUCAS Device

City of Fort Lauderdale PD 14,850.00$              4,950.00$                19,800.00$              Trauma Supplies

City of Miami 51,586.50$              17,195.50$              68,782.00$              Blood Program

City of Port Richey Fire Dept 51,675.00$              17,225.00$              68,900.00$              

AED, Video Laryngoscope, Chest Compression 

Device, Monitors

City of Sunrise Fire Rescue 19,519.74$              6,506.58$                26,026.32$              

Bleeding Control Kits, AED Outdoor Storage 

Cabinets, AED

Coastal Health Systems 120,000.00$            40,000.00$              160,000.00$            Ventilators

Cocoa Beach Fire Dept 18,322.97$              6,107.66$                24,430.63$              AED

Coral Springs 106,762.50$            35,587.50$              142,350.00$            

Accreditation, Training, Printers & Cartridges, 

Software, EPOC Blood Analysis System

Dixie County 79,974.75$              26,658.25$              106,633.00$            Mobile Oxygen Generating System (MOGS-100)

Gilchrist County 93,750.00$              31,250.00$              125,000.00$            Trailer

Glades County 164,250.00$            54,750.00$              219,000.00$            Power Cot with Power Load

Gulf County 28,217.49$              9,405.83$                37,623.32$              Radio

Hamilton County EMS 55,367.73$              18,455.91$              73,823.64$              Stair Chairs, Power Load System

Hamilton County EMS 124,638.00$            41,546.00$              166,184.00$            Monitors

Hernando County Fire Rescue 180,000.00$            60,000.00$              240,000.00$            Chest Compression Device

Hollywood Fire Rescue 19,558.13$              6,519.38$                26,077.50$              Manikins

Holmes County 152,343.75$            50,781.25$              203,125.00$            Ambulance Remount

Jackson County FIre Rescue 28,800.00$              3,200.00$                32,000.00$              Blood Program

Jefferson County 9,000.00$                1,000.00$                10,000.00$              Ultrasound

Lake County Fire Rescue 7,636.26$                2,545.42$                10,181.68$              CO Detector

Lake Mary Fire Dept 8,394.32$                2,798.11$                11,192.42$              EMS Electric Bicycle

Leon County EMS 46,500.00$              15,500.00$              62,000.00$              AED

State EMS Matching Grant Awards June 2024

Page 1 of 2

Amanda Brown
Highlight



Organization

State

Award

Grantee

Match

Project

Total Summary of Approved Project

State EMS Matching Grant Awards June 2024

Leon County EMS 35,625.00$              11,875.00$              47,500.00$              Training: CPR

Liberty County EMS 198,443.38$            66,147.79$              264,591.17$            Power Load System, Ambulance Remount

Madision County Fire Rescue 51,000.00$              17,000.00$              68,000.00$              SUV/Crew Cab Pickup Truck/Vehicle for MIH-CP

Madison County 31,500.00$              10,500.00$              42,000.00$              Ventilators

Miami-Dade Fire Rescue 90,000.00$              30,000.00$              120,000.00$            Stretchers

Okeechobee County FIre Rescue 91,060.11$              30,353.37$              121,413.48$            LUCAS Device

Orlando Health 7,737.00$                2,579.00$                10,316.00$              Airway Training Head

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue 24,000.00$              8,000.00$                32,000.00$              Ventilators

Pembroke Pines Fire Rescue 13,984.36$              4,661.45$                18,645.81$              LUCAS Device

Pembroke Pines Fire REscue 22,832.97$              7,610.99$                30,443.96$              Power Chair

Pembroke Pines Fire Rescue 10,136.88$              3,378.96$                13,515.84$              CPRmeter 2

Polk County Fire Rescue 101,253.75$            33,751.25$              135,005.00$            Refrigeration, Infusion System

Positive Mobility Inc. 28,117.50$              9,372.50$                37,490.00$              Physio-Control Lifepack

Saint Lucie County Fire District 7,113.00$                2,371.00$                9,484.00$                Wound Packing Trainer, Manikin

Suwannee River AHEC 35,137.50$              11,712.50$              46,850.00$              Training: FAIR

Suwannee River AHEC 16,500.00$              5,500.00$                22,000.00$              Training: GEMS

Temple Terrace PD 18,742.64$              6,247.55$                24,990.19$              AED

The Villages 60,000.00$              20,000.00$              80,000.00$              Ventilators

Titusville Fire Dept 16,966.85$              5,655.62$                22,622.46$              AED

Union County EMS 57,000.00$              19,000.00$              76,000.00$              Monitors

Visionary Healthcare Solutions 7,500.00$                2,500.00$                10,000.00$              Ventilators

Wakulla County Fire Rescue 24,750.00$              8,250.00$                33,000.00$              Ventilators

Walton County Sheriff's Office 45,317.24$              15,105.75$              60,422.99$              Rugged Tablet, Simbodies EMS-T Trainer

Totals: 2,933,103.26$        906,970.25$           3,840,073.51$        

Quantity of Applications: 55

Page 2 of 2



BOARD OI, COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OI,'BR-A.DFORD COUNTY, FLORII)A

AGIINDA ITENT INFORN{AIION SH}.]T.]I'

DATE: .lune 20,2024

AGENDA ITEM: Approval of the Edward Byme Memorial.lustice Assistance Grant (AG)
Program:

o Certificate of Participation for Fiscal-Year 2023

o 517o Letter- BOCC
o Lobbying, Debarment, and Drug Ftee Workplace Certification

DEPARTN{L,NT: Bradford Counh, Shcriff s Offi ce

PURPOSE: Ovcrtime Reimburscment Grant

ASSOCIT\ D COST(S) $48,339.00

Page 1 of 1

BLTpGEI r.rNA (G/L #):



Edward Byme Memorial
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program

Mr. Cody Menacof
Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

Dear i,4r. Menacof:

This letter provides notilication that the Bradford Counly Board of Commissioners
y' Accepts _Declines to serve as the coordinating unit of government for the Florida Department of

Law Enforcement's Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Countywide Program.

I understand, for the purposes of the JAG Countywide Program, the county can only request and approve
applications for eligible subrecipients. ln order to meet eligibility requiremenls, the county, and each
organization or agency identified through the 51% planning process (as provided by Florida Administrative
Code, Chapter 1 1D-9.002), must be able to document compliance with the following requirements prior to
receiving a subaward:

. 2 C.F.R. Pai2s-Universal ldentifier and System for Award Management (SAM) Requirements

. 8 U.S.C 51373 & 1644-Communication Between Governments and the lmmigration and
Natunlization Service

o 28 C.F.R. Pad 42-Nondiscrimination: Equal Employment Oppoftunity: Policies and Procedures
. 2 C.F.R. 5200.318-327-Faderal Procurement Sfandarids
. 2 C.F.R Part 200.300-309-Standards for Financial and Prognm Management

For purposes of coordinating the preparation of application(s) for grant funds with the Office of
Criminal Justice Grants, the following individual is designated as County Coordinator
for the county's FY23 JAG Countywids subawards:

Name: 6;6 1r116661s Agency: Bradford county Sheriffs Office

Title: ExecutiveAssistant Address: PO Box 400

Email: kim nichols@bradfordsheriff.orq City: Starkee

Zip: 32091

I acknowledge and understand the responsibility placed upon the county to ensure grant funds are used
for improving criminal justice and subawards, as identifted through the 51% process, are only approved to
eligible subrecipients.

Sincerely,

Chair
Bradford County Board of Commissioners

Rule Refer€nce 11D-9.006 OCJG{24 (R6v. March 2021)

CERTIFICATE OF PARTICIPATION

Phone: 904-966-6307



"Jd \
C*rly,

"l&@r*$v\pr/;'

District I
Carolyn Spooner
Chair

Bradford Counff
Board of County Cornmissioners

District II
Kenny Thompson

District III
Chris Dougherty

Distnct IV
Dannv fuddick
Vice Chair

District V
Diane Andrevrs

Jlur:'e20,2024

Mr. Cody Menacof
Office of Criminal Justice Grants
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

Dear Mr. Menacof,

In compliance with the State of Florida Rule 11-D, F.A.C., the Board of County Commissioners
approves the distribution of $34,834 of Federal Fiscal Year 2023 Edward Byme Memorial JAG
Program funds for the following projects within Bradford County:

Subgrantee Title ol Proiect Dollar Amount

Bradford Countv OPERATIONCRIMEREDUCTION $48,339.00

Sincerely,

Carolyn Spooner
Chairwoman, Bradford County Board of
County Commissioners

945 Nonh Temple Avenue . P.O. Drawet B . Statke, Florida 32091 . Tel (904\ 966-6327 . Fax (904) 368-3903

Commissioners E-mail: bocc@bradfordcountyfl.gov . lWebsite: r'r'w.bradfotdcountyfl.gov



Office of Griminal Justice Grants
LOBBYING, DEBARMENT, AND DRUG FREE

WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION
Email completed form to: criminaliustice@fdle.state.fl .us

a) No ,ederal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, lo any
person for inlluencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with
the making of any federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal grant or coope.ative agreement.

b) It any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an ofiicer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with this federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit St.n.le..l F^rm III - "nie.ldsrrra nfI^hhvind A^livities" in accordance with its
instructions.

c) The undersigned shall require that the language ot this certification be included in the award documents for
all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, and
subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall cerlify and disclose accordingly.

2, Debarment, Susp€nsion and Other Rosponsibility Matlors

As required by Executive Orde|l2549, Debarment and Suspension, and amplemented at 28 CFR Part 67 -

a) The applicant certifies that it and its principals:

iii.

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced lo
a denial of federal benefts by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any federal department or agency;
Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil
judgement rendered against them for commission offraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or pertorming a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
anlilrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft torgery, bribery, falsification or destruction
of records, making false slatements, or receiving stolen property;
Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (axii) of
this certilication; and
Have nol within a three-year period precEding this application had one or more public transactions
(F€d€ral, State or local) terminated for cause or detault.

b) Where the applicant is unable to cerlify to any ot the statemenls in this certilication, he or she shall atlach an
explanation to this application.

3. Drug Free Workplace

As required by the Orug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, Subpart F, as defined
at 28 CFR Part 67 Seclions 67.615 and 67.620 -
a) The applicant certifes that it will or will continue to provide a drug-ftee workplace by

Lobbyang, Debarment, and Drug Free Workplace Cerlification
Page 1 ol2

rev. 04124

!EEggl!g!g! Before completing this form, applicants should refer lo the regulations cited below to determine which
cerlifcations are required. Using this form, applicants may certify their compliance with the following requirements:
28 CFR Part 69, "New Restrictions on Lobbying;" 28 CFR Part 67, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspensions
(Non-procurement);" and 28 CFR 83, "Govemment-wide Requirements tor Drug Free Wo*place (Grants)," as
applicable. The certifications attested to on this form shall be treated as a material representation of fact and will be
relied upon as such when the Office of Criminal Justice Grants makes award determinations for a covered
transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

l. Lobbying

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 69, for persons
€ntering into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, as defined at 28 CFR Part 69, the applicant
certifes that:



Office of Criminal Justice Grants
LOBBYING, DEBARMENT, AND DRUG FREE

WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION
Emall completed form to: criminaliustice@fdle.state.fl .us

Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlaMul manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the subgrantee's workplace and
specitying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about -

The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2
3
4

The subgrantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

lll

vI

The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occuning in
the workplace.

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the pertormance of the grant be
given a copy ofthe statem€nt required by paragraph (i);
Notifying the employee in th€ statement required by paragraph (i) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will -

1) Abide by the terms of this statemenl: and
2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of criminal drug stiatute

occuning in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after the conviction.
Notifying the agency, in writing, within ten (10) calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (ivx2)from an €mployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such crnviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice including position title to: Florida
Department of Law Enforcement, Office ot Criminal Justice Grants, P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee,
FL 32302-1489. Notice shall include the identification numbe(s) of each affected grant.
Taking one of the following actions within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (ivx2), with respect to any employee who is convicted -

'l ) Taking appropriate personnel aciion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

2) Requiring such employee lo participale in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stale, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs (i) through (vi).

b) The subgrantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the perlormance or work done in
connection with

Recip ient. Bradford County Board ofCounty Commission

prinled Name: Carolyn Spooner Title.Chair

Lobbying, Debarment, and Drug Free Workplace Certilication
Page 2 ot 2

rcv. 04124

Application lD Number: FY23 JAG- Crime Reduction Grant

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby cerlify that applicant will comply with the following
certifications:

E Certilicalion Regarding Lobbying (requir6d for applications over $'IOO,OOO)

@ Certilication Regardinq Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters (required for all
applicants)

I Cedn".ton Regarding Drug-Free Workplace (required for state agency applications)

Signatur€: Date:



AllocationCounty County Allocation

Bay

$10s,730Alachua
Baker $31,841

$98,708

Lee
Lake $107,450

Leon
$204.223
$ 1 19,985

$42,725
$48,4s6

Manatee
Madison $60,1 76

$131,275
Marion
Martin

$114,686
$7s,991

Levy
Liberty

$74,431

$111,820

Pasco

Monroe

$56,091
$82,621
$97,780

$344,174

$348,087
$ 163,1 16

Nassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee

Palm Beach

Orange
Osceola

$48,339
$165,078

$40,408

$s2,495
$275,276

Escambia $132,109
Flagler $52,901

$42,490Franklin
Gadsden $46,879

Clay

Desoto

$432,599

Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun

$63,591
Collier $150,659

$130,165
$648,300

$50,8s1
Dixie
Duval

Columbia
Dade

Charlotte
Citrus

$73,307
$63,454

Pinellas

$89,624

Polk
Putnam

$270,837
$ 199,599

Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole $142,758

Sumter $58,307

St. Johns
St. Lucie

$77,6s8
$102,125

Suwannee
Taylor

$47.419

Union
$ 1s9,507

$32,798

$49,763
$32,229

Volusia
Wakulla

$1 13,699

$126.824

Walton $43,878
Washington $41,746

Gulf $55,s21
Hamilton

$74,068

Hillsborough
Holmes
lndian River $69,1 1 1

$38,194
$214,331

Lafayette $42,178

$37,768
$345,441

Jackson
Jefferson

$64,081
$66,064

Hernando
Highlands

Hardee
Hendry

Gilchrist
Glades

$31,686
$67,462

$71,917
$49,412

I

Total $7,5U,272

FY2023 JAG Countywide (JAGC)
Allocations



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     June 20, 2024    
    
AGENDA ITEM Agreement Between The Alachua Board of County 

Commissioners and The Bradford County Board of County 
Commissioners Regarding Reimbursement of Disallowed 
Costs for CSNCF FY 2017-18, 2018-19, and 2019-20 

 
DEPARTMENT:    County Manager 
 
PURPOSE: This agreement was drafted by Alachua County pursuant to 

the Bradford County decision to agree to pay 13% of the 
settlement of disallowed costs from Career Source North 
Central Florida’s (CSNCF) expenditures of grant funding.  

  
 Included in this packet: 

• Agreement between Alachua BoCC and Bradford BoCC 
• Minutes from the April 21, 2022, Bradford BoCC 

Meeting showing a vote to approve an agreement be 
developed with Alachua County to pay $113,465.83 in 
installments. (Item 5B) 

• Invoice 2024-00000001 from Alachua County BoCC for 
the first installment payment of $56,728.42 

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S): $113,465.83 
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #): 001-01-592-99600-00   
 This is a new GL created for this expense. A budget 

amendment for this for the current fiscal year will be 
addressed in with all other budget amendments in November. 

  



Page 1 of 6 
 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE ALACHUA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
AND  

THE BRADFORD COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
REGARDING REIMBURSEMENT OF DISALLOWED COSTS  

FOR CSNCF FY 2017-18, 2018-19 AND 2019-20 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered b y  and between 
Alachua County, a c h a r t e r  c o u n t y  a n d  a  political subdivision of  the State of 
Florida, and Bradford County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, 
(hereinafter, Alachua County and Bradford County are collectively referred to herein 
as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party”). 
 

WHEREAS, Alachua County and Bradford County comprise a workforce 
development area for the North Central Florida under the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act of 2014, United States Public Law 113 - 128 (“WIOA”); and 

 
WHEREAS, WIOA requires that where a workforce development area is 

comprised of more than unit of local government, those governmental units must enter 
into an agreement that specifies the respective roles of the individual chief elected 
officials of each general purpose unit  of government; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain interlocal agreement 

executed by the Parties on November 9, 2016 (the “2016 Interlocal Agreement”), for the 
purpose of establishing a multi-jurisdictional arrangement to carry out the individual 
responsibilities of each Party under WIOA; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2016 Interlocal Agreement established a Local Workforce 

Development Board (“LWDB”), commonly referred to as CareerSource North Central 
Florida, to execute certain workforce responsibilities related delegate to the LWDB 
pursuant to Federal statutes and regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (“DEO”) awarded 

various grants to CareerSource North Central Florida (“CSNCF”) for fiscal years 2017-
18, 2018-19, and 2019-20; and  

 
WHEREAS, in 2019, DEO completed its financial monitoring of CSNCF for Fiscal 

Years 2017-18, 2018-19, and 2019-20, as reflected in DEO’s 2017-18, 2018-19, and 
2019-20 Financial Compliance Monitoring Report dated December 20, 2019 (“Monitoring 
Report”); and 

 
 



Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, the Monitoring Report questioned the appropriateness of 
$5,593,585.90 of CSNCF’s expenditure of grant funding awarded to CSNCF during 
Fiscal Years 2017-18, 2018-19, and 2019-20; and 

 
 WHEREAS, after a lengthy investigation, by letter dated April 4, 2022, DEO 

determined that it would disallow $872,814.04 of DEO-funded grant expenditures and 
demanded that CSNCF repay that amount from non-federal funding sources; and 

 
WHEREAS, although the grant funds were administered by CSNCF, federal law 

and the 2016 Interlocal Agreement provided that Alachua County and Bradford County 
were the grant recipients and, therefore, are legally responsible to repay grant funding 
that is determined to have been misused; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 12, 2022, the Alachua County Board of County 

Commissioners took up this matter and, among other things, agreed to pay the entire 
$872,814.04 disallowed amount if Bradford County would agree to reimburse Alachua 
County for 13% of that amount, for a total reimbursement of $113,456.83; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 21, 2022, the Bradford County Board of County 

Commissioners took up this matter and, among other things, agreed to reimburse 
Alachua County in the total amount of $113,456.83; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon Bradford County’s actions on April 21, 2022, Alachua 

County timely remitted payment to DEO in the full amount of $872,814.04, receipt of said 
payment was acknowledged by DEO by letter dated June 13, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to formalize the terms by which Bradford County 

will reimburse Alachua County in the amount of $113,456.83. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and the conditions 

herein set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein. 
 

2. Payment to Alachua County: Bradford County agrees to pay to Alachua County 
the total amount of $113,456.83, as provided below, to reimburse Alachua 
County for Alachua County’s advance payment to DEO of Bradford County’s 
share of the disallowed costs determined by DEO for Fiscal Years 2017-18, 
2018-19, and 2019-20 for CSNCF. 
 
A. Payment No. 1: With thirty (30) calendar days of the Effective Date of this 

Interlocal Agreement, Bradford County shall remit payment number 1 to 



Page 3 of 6 
 

Alachua County in the amount of $56,728.42.  
 

B. Payment No. 2 (Final Payment): By no later than November 30, 2024, 
Bradford County shall remit payment number 2 to Alachua County in the 
amount of $56,728.41. 
 

C. Payment Instructions: All payments shall be made payable to Alachua 
County B.o.C.C and shall be mailed to: 

 
Alachua County 
Attn: Finance & Accounting 
12 SE First Street 
4th Floor 
Gainesville, Florida 32601 

 
3. Notice. 

 
A. All notices under this Agreement shall be deemed sufficient and properly given 

if in writing delivered: (i) in person, (ii) by certified mail, postage prepaid with 
return receipt requested to the following addresses; provided, if notice is sent 
by mail, the notice shall be deemed delivered on the third day following such 
mailing which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which the United States 
mail is not delivered, (iii) by email to the following email addresses, or (iv) to 
the following addresses by a commercial overnight courier that guarantees next 
day delivery and provides a receipt: 
 
 If to Alachua County: County Manager 
 12 SE 1st Street 
 Second Floor 
 Gainesville, Florida 32601 
 MLieberman@alachuacounty.us 
  
 
 If to Bradford County: County Manager 
 945 N. Temple Avenue 
 Starke, Florida  32091 
 Scott Kornegay@bradfordcountyfl.gov 
 

 
B. Any Party may designate any further or different address or email address to 

which subsequent notices shall be sent by sending notice thereof to the 
addresses listed above. 

 



Page 4 of 6 
 

4. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective (“Effective Date”) upon approved 
and execution by both Parties.  

 
5. Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement may only be amended in writing, 

signed by both Parties. No waive of any provision of this Agreement shall be 
deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, 
whether or not similar. 
 

6. Sovereign Immunity. Nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by 
either party of its sovereign immunity or the provisions of section 768.28, F.S. 
Further, nothing herein shall be construed as consent to be sued by third parties 
in any matter arising under this Agreement.  
 

7. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their 
respective successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, 
their respective successors and assigns. 

 
8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the 

Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes (except as 
expressly provided herein) all prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
understanding, negotiations and discussion of the Parties, whether oral or 
written, and there are no warranties, representations or other agreement 
between the Parties in connection with the subject matter hereof, except as 
specifically set forth herein. 
 

9. Interpretation. The provisions of this Agreement have been carefully and fully 
negotiated between the Parties, each of which has had equal bargaining power. 
The terms of this Agreement are to be construed in accordance with their fair 
meaning and intent and are not to be construed for or against either Party 
because such Party or its attorney drafted this Agreement. 

 
10. Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State. Sole and exclusive venue for all actions 
arising from this Agreement shall be in the Alachua County, Florida. 

 
11. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each Party waives its rights to demand trial by jury. 

 
12. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not 
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof and the remainder 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 



Page 5 of 6 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have made and executed this 
Agreement on the respective dates under each signature: 

 

APPROVED, with a quorum present and voting this ______ day of 
__________________, 2024. 
 

 
ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
By: ____________________ By: _______________________ 
 J.K. “Jess” Irby, Esq. Mary C. Alford, Chair 
 Clerk 

Approved as to Form 

_________________________________ 
Alachua County Attorney’s Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
APPROVED, with a quorum present and voting this  _____ day of 

___________________, 2024. 

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

By: _________________________ By: _____________________________ 
 Denny Thompson Carolyn Spooner 
 Clerk to the Board Chair 

Approved as to Form 

_________________________________ 
Bradford County Attorney 



April2l,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COLINTY, FLORIDA
April2l,2022

6:30 P.M.
Bradford County Courthouse

945 North Temple Avenue
Starke, Florida 32091

MEETING MINUTES

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioner District 3 - Chair Joseph C. Dougherty
Commissioner District 5 - Vice Chair Diane Andrews
Commissioner District 1 - Carolyn Spooner
Commissioner District 2 - Kenny Thompson
Commissioner District 4 - Danny Riddick

PRESS PRESENT: Bradford County Telegraph

STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: County Attomey Will Sexton; Executive Assistant Alyssa
Winston; Clerk Denny Thompson; Chief Deputy Clerk Rachel Rhoden; Finance Director Dana LaFollette;
Sheriff Gordon Smith; Fire Rescue Director Allen Parrish; Fire Division Chief Ben Carter; and Public Works
Director Jason Dodds.

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Joseph C. Dougherty called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.

I. PUBLIC HEARING _ ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCES _ RANDY ANDREWS, ZONING
DIRECTOR

A. AN ORDINANCE (Ordinance No. 2022-05) AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE
PLAN MAP OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION,
5220228A, BY THE PROPERTY OWNER, CHANGING THE LAND USE
CLASSIFICATION FROM RESIDENTIAL, LOW DENSITY (LESS THAN OR EQUAL
TO 2 DWELLING UNITS PER ACRE) TO COMMERCIAL.

Chair Dougherty recognized Mr. Andrews, who read the title of the ordinance.

Chair Dougherty opened the public hearing for public comments; there being no public comments, the public
hearing was closed.

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER SPOONER AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
RIDDICK TO APPROVE THE ORDINANCE AS PRESENTED.

Page I of 13



Apri1 21,2022

BoCC Mcetingゝ4inutcs

CHAIR JOSEPⅡ C.DOUGHERTY CONDUCTED A ROLL‐ CALL VOTE:
Corrllnissioner Riddick:Aye

Commissioner Thompson:Aye
Comnnissioner Spooncr:Ayc

Vice Chair Andrews:Ayc

Chair Dougherty― Aye

MOT10N CARRIES5… 0

Chair Doughcrty passcd thc gavelto Vice Chair Diane Andrews and bricfly excused hirnselffrom the meeting.

B.AN ORDINANCE                 AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING
ATLAS PURSUANT TO AN APPLICAT10N,Z22…01,BY THE PROPERTY OWNER,
CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT FROⅣ I RURAL RESIDENTIAL(RD TO
COMMERCIAL,INTENSIVE(CI)。

Vicc Chair Andrcws rccognized lVIr.Andrcws,who rcad the title ofthe ordinancc.

Vicc Chair Andrcws opened thc public hearing for public commcnts:

o  Clcrk Denny Thompson sought clariflcation on the rezoning classiflcation.ヽ /1r.Andrews rcspondcd that

the rczoning classiflcation brings the property use into compliance with the county's land use

rcgulations.

There bcing no additional public comments,thc public hcaring was closcd.

IT WAS MOVED BY COMPIISS10NER RIDDICK AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
THOMPSON TO APPROVE THE ORDINANCE AS PRESENTED.

VICE CHAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL‐CALL VOTE:
Comllnissioner Riddick:Aye

Commissioncr Thompson:Ayc
Corrmissioner Spooncr:Aye
Vice Chair Andrcws:Aye

MOT10N CARRIES4… 0

2. PUBLIC COPIPIENTS:No public colnments.

3. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEⅣ IS:

A.APPROVAL OF:BOARD OF COUNTY COPIⅣ IISS10NERS ⅣIEETING IⅦINUTES―
MARCH 17,2022.

B.APPROVAL OF:BOARD OF COUNTY COⅣ IⅣIISS10NERS BUDGET WORKSHOP
ⅣIEETING MINUTES― ⅣIARCH 24,2022.

Page 2 of 13



Apri1 21,2022

BoCC Mceting ⅣIinutes

C.APPROVAL OF: BOARD OF COUNTY COMⅣ IISS10NERS LETTER TO
SECRETARY GREG EVANS(FDOT)RE: TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT FOR FLASHING BEACONS AT STATE ROAD 100 AND COUNTY
ROAD 21‐ B.

Do APPROVAL OF:FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLATION(S)
AND TRANSFER OF MAINTENANCE(STATE ROAD 100 AND COUNTY ROAD 21‐ B
INTERSECT10N).

E.APPROVAL OF: DELL TECHNOLOGIES QUOTE IN AN AMOUNT NOT T0
EXCEED S2,000.00 LAPTOPS FOR THE LAWTEY POLICE DEPARTⅣIENT(IGCF
APPROVED FEBRUARY 22,2022)。

Fo APPROVAL OF:REFERRAL OF DELINQUENT EMS ACCOUNTSIN THE AMOUNT
OF S54,688.81 TO NAT10NAL RECOVERY AGENCY FOR FURTHER COLLECT10N
EFFORTS.

G.APPROVAL OF:DIRECT10N TO STAFF TO BEGIN FORPIAL NEGOTIAT10NS
WITH ACFR FOR EMS BILLING.

H.APPROVAL OF:REQUEST FOR TIIⅦ E EXTENS10N FOR GRANT AGREEMENT
NO.19022 WITⅡ  THE FLORIDA WILDLIFE CONSERVAT10N.

I. APPROVAL OF:SUBDIVIS10N SETTLEⅣ IENT PARTICIPAT10N FORPl FOR TEVA
(OPIOID LITIGAT10N)SETTLEMENT.

J. APPROVAL OF: SUBDIVIS10N SETTLEMENT PARTICIPATION FORⅣ I FOR
ALLERGAN(OPIOID LITIGAT10N)SETTLEMENT.

Ko APPROVAL OF:SUBDIVIS10N SETTLEMENT PARTICIPAT10N FORM FOR CVS
(OPIOID LITIGAT10N)SETTLEMENT.

Lo AUTHORIZAT10N TO: ADVERTISE FOR PUBLIC HEARING FOR ROAD
ABANDONMENT APPLICAT10N 2022- 01 (A PORT10N OF BEDFORD
STREET/SCHILLER).

IT WAS Ⅳ10VED BY COⅣ IPIISS10NER SP00NER AND SECONDED BY COMMISS10NER
THOMIPSON TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.

VICE CHAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL… CALL VOTE:
Commissioncr Riddick:Ayc

Comnlissioner Thompson:Ayc
Colninlssloncr Spooner:Aye

Vicc Chair Andrews:Aye

MOT10N CARRIES4中 0

DISCUSS10N:
● Agcnda items 3(C)and 3(D).

Page 3 of 13



Apri1 2 1,2022

BoCC Mceting Minutcs

4. REVIEW AND APPROVE OF BUDGET WORKSⅡ OP CONSIDERAT10NS:

A.DIRECT10N TO COUNTY ATTORNEY AND CLERK'S FINANCE DEPARTMENT T0
DEVELOP AND PRESENT A DRAFT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
WⅡICH INCLUDES ALL SHERIFF'S OFFICE CONTROLLED AND RELATED
EXPENSES(SPECIFICALLY INCLUDING BUT NOT NECESSARILY LIIⅦ ITED TO
HEALTⅡ  INSURANCE, WORKERS COMPENSAT10N, LAW ENFORCEⅣ IENT
EDUCAT10N, CRIIⅦ E PREVENT10N, STATE ATTORNEY/SⅡ ERIFF FORFEITS,
MEDICAL DOCTOR AGREEMENT AND SAFETY COMPLEX UTILITIES)FROM
FINES AND FORFEITURES FUND/OTHER COURT OPERATING COSTS IN
SHERIFF'S OPERATING BUDGET/JAIL BUDGET.

Mr. Sexton sought direction frOnl thc board On wherc it wOuld like to sce certain cxpcnses incurred by thc

sheriffs offlcc placcd in the budget.Mr.Sexton rcported of an attomey genera1 0pinion fronl 1979 where thc

attomcy gcncral opincd that a constitutional offlccr's utilitics budgct should not bc includcd in thcir opcrational

budgct.

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISS10NER RIDDICK AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
SP00NER TO MOVE HEALTH INSURANCE, WORKERS COMPENSAT10N, LAW
ENFORCEMENT EDUCAT10N,CRIIⅥE PREVENT10N,STATE ATTORNEY/SHERIFF FORFEITS
AND ⅣIEDICAL DOCTOR AGREEMENT TO THE SHERIFF'S BUDGET。

VICE CHAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL‐CALL VOTE:
Commissioncr Riddick:Aye

Cornrnissioner Thompson:Ayc

Collnllnlssloncr SpoOncr:Ayc

Vice Chair Andrews:Ayc

MOT10N CARRIES4-0

B.DIRECT10N TO COUNTY ATTORNEY AND CLERK'S FINANCE DEPARTMENT T0
DEVELOP AND PRESENT A DRAFT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
WHICH IS NOT BALANCED USING FUND BALANCE.

4ヽr. Scxton sought direction fronl the board on its desirc to rcceive an initial budget not balanccd、 vith fund
balance/savings.NIIr. Scxton advised that thc budgct must bc balanccd legany,and that the board will necd to

offcr input on hovv it wOuld likc to balance thc budgct eithcr with general fund revenue,budget cuts,and/or

fund balance/savings.

DISCUSS10N:
●  Comments in favor ofreceiving a dra■ budget not balanced with fund balance/savings.

IT WAS Ⅳ10VED BY COⅣIPIISS10NER THOⅣ IPSON AND SECONDED BY COⅣ IⅣIISS10NER
RIDDICK TO BUILD A BUDGET WITHOUT USING FUND BALANCEIF POSSIBLE.

Page 4 of 13



Apri1 21,2022

BoCC Mceting Minutes

VICE CⅡAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL‐ CALL VOTE:
Comrrlissioner Riddick:Aye

Commissioner Thompson:Ayc
Cornrnlssloner Spooncr:Aye

Vice Chair Andrews:Aye

MOT10N CARRIES4‐ 0

C.DIRECT10N TO STAFF TO DEVELOP AND PROVIDE INITIAL REPORT ON
PROCESS FOR INVESTIGAT10N FOR HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE
OPT10NS.

Ⅳlr.Scxton sought direction irom the board to havc staff dcvelop and provide an initial report on the process for

investigation for health insurancc covcragc Options.

DISCUSS10N:
●  Collnllncnts in support of protccting employce beneflts.

●  Commcnts in support of shopping lor bettcr ratcs.

●  Comments rcgarding flre rescue's proposed budgct cut of an ambulancc unit and thc potcntial nccd to

add that back into the budget.

●  Corninents regarding thc county's insurancc plan not offcred in other counties,

●  Commcnts suggcsting that additional cuts made clsewherc could prcvcnt thc necd to shop lowcr―
cost

insurance.

●  Comments rcgarding Lori Thompson with Robcrt lnsurancc, Inc. offcring her assistance to shOp

insurance rates.

IT WAS MOVED BY COⅣ IⅣIISS10NER SP00NER AND SECONDED BY COMPIISSIONER
THOMPSON TO DIRECT STAFF TO L00K INT0 0THER INSURANCE PROVIDERS AND
REPORT TO TⅡ E BOARD.

Commissioner Riddick: AYe

Commissioner Thompson: AYe

Commissioner Spooner: AYe

Vice Chair Andrews: Aye

MOTION CARRIES 4-O

[Note: Chair Dougherty returned to the meeting. The gavel remained with Vice Chair Andrews.]

Do TEⅣIPORARILY SUSPEND FURTHER ACT10N FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/20230N
IⅣIPLEⅣIENTAT10N OF SPECIAL ASSESSPIENT(S)FOR FIIu]AND EⅣIERGENCY

ⅣIEDICAL SERVICES.

Page 5 of 13



Apri1 2 1,2022

BoCC Mceting Minutes

Mr.Sexton sought direction froln thc board on its desire to temporarily suspcnd or continue furthcr action on

the implementation of a spccial assessment for flrc and cmcrgency lnedical scⅣ ices.

IT WAS PIOVED BY COⅣ IPIISS10NER RIDDICK AND SECONDED BY COⅣ IMISS10NER
THOMPSON TO TEMPORARILY SUSPEND FURTHER ACT10N.

DISCUSS10N:
●  Comments madc concerning other counties having a balancc betwecn a lo、 v lnillage rate and other

revcnue resourccs in place such as special assessmcnts and franchisc fees.

o  Crcate a situation that allows thc board to roll¨ back the millage ratc.

●  Intcrest cxprcssed in colning up with other revcnue altematives.

o  Commcnts in favor ofkccping rcvcnue discussions open.

● Comments in favor ofrecci宙 ng rcvcnue prdectiOns beforc considering new taxes.

COⅣIPIISS10NER RIDDICK WITⅡ DREW HIS MOT10N. THERE WAS N0 0BJECT10N
EXPRESSED BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD TO WITHDRAW THE MOT10N.

No further action takcn by the board on iten1 4(D).

E.TEⅣIPORARILY SUSPEND FURTⅡER ACT10N FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023
AND/OR COLLECT10N OFIMPACT FEES.

No action taken by the board.

F. DIRECT10N TO STAFF TO CONTINUE NEGOTIAT10NS WITH FLORIDA POWER
AND LIGHT AND CLAY ELECTRIC C00PERATIVE FOR THE IPIPLEⅣ IENTAT10N
AND COLLECT10N OF FRANCHISE FEES.

No action taken by thc board.

G.DIRECT10N TO STAFF TO CONTINUE RESEARCH AND INVESTIGAT10N OF
EMERGENCY FIIUtt RESCUE SERVICES AND FACILITIES(SALES)SURTAX.

No action taken by the board.

5。 COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS― WILLIAM E.SEXTON,COUNTY ATTORNEY

A.BOARD CONSIDERAT10N OF PURCHASESIN EXCESS OF S2,500。 00(IF ANY):

i.  GENERAL FUND
ao MERIDIAN BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE ― PROFESS10NAL

SVCS.… S6,918.19

b. CITY OF STARKE― COURTHOUSE ELECTRIC‐ S8,457.45

Page 6 of 13



April2l,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

五.  LIBRARY
ao CITY OF STARKE― LIBRARY ELECTRIC‐ S3,422.24

面.  PUBLIC WORKS

a. L.V.HIERS,INC.― GASOLINE‐ S18,114.78

b. LoV.HIERS,INC.― DIESEL‐ S19,567.35

c. BEARD EQUIPⅣ IENT,CO.― PAVING ⅣIACHINE‐ S204,724.40

d. NEW RIVER SOLID WASTE ASSOC.― TIPPING FEES‐ S44,680。02

e. V.E.WHITEHURST&SONS― S.E.49TH AVE.‐ S160,347.42

■ ANDERSON COLUⅣ IBIA CO。 ,INC.― CR 227‐ S2,626.30

go PRITCHETT TRUCKING,INC.― LIIⅦEROCK― S12,295。91

ho WASTEQUIP INDUSTRIAL-40‐YARD CONTAINERS― S19,186.00

iv.  SHERIFF

a. CITY OF STARKE― PUBLIC SAFETY COⅣIPLEX ELECTRIC‐
S18,291.94

Mr.Sexton prescntcd expcnditures in excess of$2,500.00。

DISCUSS10N:No discussion.

B.APPROVAL OF:CAREERSOURCE NORTH CENTRAL FLORIDA/STATE OF
FLORIDA,  DEPARTMENT  OF  ECONOMIC  OPPORTUNITY  (DEO)
SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENT(S):

i.  AGREEMENT NOT TO APPEAL DEO FINDINGS.

五.  ALLOCAT10N OF DISALLOWED COSTS BETWEEN ALACHUA COUNTY
AND BRADFORD COUNTY BASED UPON OPERAT10NAL/FACILITY
COST BREAKDOWN(ALLOCAT10N:ALACHUA 870/0‐ BRADFORD 13° /。

)。

五i.  PAYMENT OF Sl13,465。83 TO ALACHUA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMPIIISS10NERS.

市。  APPROVAL OF PAYMENT BY ALACHUA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMⅣIISS10NERS TO DEO AS A LUⅣ IP SUDII.

v.  APPROVAL FOR CAttERSOURCE NORTⅡ  CENTRAL FLORIDA TO
PROCEED WITH DEO AUDIT uCOⅣIⅣIENDAT10NS.

Ⅳlr. Sexton advised thc board that in calcndar ycar 2020,CareerSource North Florida,which is comprised of

Alachua and Bradford Countics through an intcrlocal agrccment, 、vas notiflcd by DEO of non―pcllllissible

cxpenses in the amount of$8 1nillion dollars undcr the grants for which they wcrc approvcd,Sincc that tilne,

Page 7 of 13



April21,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

staff from Alachua County and CareerSource have worked with DEO to reduce disallowed expenses to an

amount just over $900 thousand dollars.

Mr. Sexton recommended that the board approve the CareerSource North Central Florida/DEO settlement

iurangements as presented. Mr. Sexton sought direction on the boards desire to handle reimbursement of
$l13,465.83 to Alachua County - multiple payments or one lump sum.

DISCUSSION:
o Disallowed cost breakdown between Alachua and Bradford Counties.
o Interest in paying Alachua County $113,465.83 over a series of installments.

Chair Dougherty recognized Tommy Crosby, Assistant County Manager for Alachua County. Mr. Crosby

advised the board of the following:

o Alachua County explored submitting an insurance claim with the insurance company representing

CareerSource, but it was rejected.
. Alachua County is filing a claim with its errors and omissions insurance carrier to cover some of the

disallowable cost claim and encouraged Bradford County to do the same.

o Alachua County agreed to pay the total claim for disallowable expenses and did so within 30 days to

avoid incurred interest.
o Alachua County agreed to allow Bradford County to pay back a portion of the disallowable cost claim

by its CareerSource facilities square footage, rather than a 50/50 split.
o Alachua County agreed to allow Bradford County the option to pay back Alachua County in a series of

installments.
o Alachua County is now the administrative entity for CareerSource North Central Florida.

Mr. Sexton advised the board that staff is pursuing a claim with Bradford County's insurance carrier.

IT WAS MOVED BY COMMISSIONER THOMPSON AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
spooNER To APPROVE ITEMS 5(B), I-V, INCLUDING DIRECTION TO STAFF TO DEVELOP
AN AGREEMENT FOR THE BOARD TO ENTER INTO WITH ALACHUA COUNTY TO PAY

$113,465.83 IN INSTALLMENTS.

VICE CHAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL.CALL VOTE:
Commissioner Riddick: Aye
Commissioner Thompson: Aye
Commissioner Spooner: Aye
Vice Chair Andrews: Aye
Chair Dougherty: Aye

MOTION CARRIES 5-O

Page 8 of 13



Apri1 21,2022

BoCC Mcetingゝ4inutes

C.APPROVAL OF:SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT FOR RESOLUT10N OF fИ ttf餡
MIZES―SPR/CC〃Ⅷ

'/3R/DFORD 
σOじⅣry(cASE NUMBER 2017… CA¨002019…

CA-00282034)。

ⅣIr. Scxton rcportcd that Braford County has becn involvcd in litigation over a road abandollllncnt issuc

involving plaintiff Patricia Saylcs― Spraggins sincc 2017.Mr.Sexton stated that a scttlement agrcement has bcen

reached, and that thc county's insurance carrier advises that the settlcmcnt agrecmcnt is the best option to

resolvc the case at this tilne. 卜4ro Scxton adviscd that the settlcment agrecment includcs a singlc lump stlm

payment to thc plaintiff for thc loss of access to their propcrty and thcir attomey's fees,and it includcs the

rcquircment that thc county build the plaintiffs a neⅥ /drivcway to a1low thcm access to thcir propcrty directly

off C.R.21-B.ヽ/1r.Sexton announccd his recommcndation that the board approvc the scttlcmcnt agrccment as

presented and advised thatthe settlcmcnt funds will comc from thc county's insurancc carrier.

IT WAS IⅥ OVED BY COMPIISS10NER THOMPSON AND SECONDED BY COMMISS10NER
RIDDICK TO PAY SETTLEⅣ IENT.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments made expressing frustration over the county having to payout settlement funds.

o lnsurance recommendation to settle.

VICE CHAIR DIANE ANDREWS CONDUCTED A ROLL-CALL VOTE:
Commissioner Riddick: Aye
Commissioner Thompson: Aye
Commissioner Spooner: Nay
Vice Chair Andrews: Aye
Chair Dougherty: Aye

MOTION CARRIES 4/1 (Commissioner Spooner dissenting vote).

Do REPORT AND UPDATE ON PENDING MATTERS

i.  CONCEPTS OR SUGGEST10NS FOR BUDGET
2022.

Mr. Sexton advised that he is prepared to present the next set of board department
the next budget workshop and asked if the board had other topics that it would
workshop.

DISCUSSION:
o lnterest expressed in proceeding with the next budget workshop.
o Comments made concerning presentation of additional surtax information.

WORKSHOP― lⅥAY 3,

budget prescntations during

like to discuss during said

五。  Ⅳ10VE BUDGET WORKSHOP TO ⅣIAY 2,2022-FOLLOWING REGULAR
BOCC ⅣIEETING.

Page 9 of 13



April2l,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

Mr. Sexton advised the board that there is not a significant amount of information or material on the May 2,

2022 board meeting agenda, and as such the board could consider moving its May 3,2022 budget workshop to
May 2,2022, immediately following the board meeting.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments made in support of moving the May 3,2022 budget workshop to May 2,2022, immediately

following the board meeting.
o Plans to discuss redistricting maps during the May 2,2022 board meeting.

It was the CONSENSUS of the board to move the May 3,2022 budget workshop to May 2,,2022.

Mr. Sexton provided the board with additional updates not on the agenda as follows:

* Vacant County Manager Position

Mr. Sexton reported that he has contacted the Florida Association of Counties (FAC) and the Florida

Association of County Managers (FACM) to move forward with the process of advertising, interviewing, and

selecting a new county manager. Mr. Sexton advised the board that it will need to offer input for the posting

such as salary, benefits, experience, and education. Mr. Sexton informed the board that FAC and FACM is

willing to come listen to the board, or meet with the board members individually, to get feedback in order to

develop an advertisement package.

DISCUSSION:
o Background priorities for a county manager: government, government accounting, economic

development.
o Comments in favor of discussing priorities collectively as a board.

* Bradford County Development Authority

Mr. Sexton reported that legislation took action to pass two bills that begins the process of dissolving all
independent special districts created prior to 1968. As a result of these bills, the Bradford County Development

Authority (BCDA) will become inactive effective July 1, 2023, and the county will inherit all BCDA assets

and/or liabilities.

DISCUSSION:
o Concerns expressed about the county assuming any liabilities.

* Emergency Fire Rescue Services and Facilities Surtax

Mr. Sexton reported that the county is required to provide the Florida Legislature's Office of Program Policy
Analysis and Government Accountability (OPPAGA) with a copy of the county's ordinance calling for a
referendum at least 180 days before the referendum is held. Mr. Sexton advised that in order to meet this
deadline, the board will need to adopt an emergency ordinance during its May 2,2022 meeting that outlines the

board's desire to impose the tax and to ask the supervisor of elections to post the referendum question on the

Page 10 of 13



April21,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

November 6,2022 ballot. Mr. Sexton advised that the board can later withdraw the ballot question should it
decide not to pursue the surtax.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments made in favor moving forward.
o OPPAGA audit.

* Supervisor of Elections - Canvassing Board Membership

Mr. Sexton advised that Supervisor of Elections Amanda Seyfang is requesting appointment of a commissioner

to serve as an alternate on the canvassing board. Mr. Sexton reported that the chairperson is automatically
appointed to the board and that both Commissioners Thompson and Riddick will not be able to serve since they

are both candidates for the upcoming election. Mr. Sexton asked the board to be prepared to appoint either

Commissioner Spooner or Commissioner Andrews to serve on the canvassing board during its May 2,2022
meeting.

DISCUSSION: No discussion.

{. Redistricting

Mr. Sexton reminded the board of his plan to continue discussing redistricting during the May 2,2022 meeting

and encouraged the board to visit the Dave's Redistricting website in order to prepare itself for said discussion.

DISCUSSION:
o Scheduling time to discuss strategic planning (no board action was taken).

6. PUBLIC WORKS REPORTS - JASON DODDS, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

Mr. Dodds reported on the following:

o Thanked staff for working weekends to address issues related to heavy rainfall.
. S.W. C.R.227 is under construction performing widening and milling.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments made concerning road quality of S.R. 230.

7. FIRE RESCUE REPORTS - ALLEN PARRISH, FIRE RESCUE DIRECTOR

Mr. Parrish reported on the following:

o Thanked folks that contacted him with follow-up questions concerning his budget workshop
presentation.

o Advised the board that his department lost three more employees and asked for direction from the board
on how to address the loss: 1) Fill the positions; 2) Pay overtime to cover the shifts; or 3) Make more
operational budget cuts.

Page l1 of13



April2l,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

o Advised the board that he has addressed citizen inquiries about his operational budget letting the public
know that he is doing his best with what he has and that he can't afford anymore.

o Reported that Bradford County received a certificate of its first duly permitted ALS engine.
o Announced that Dr. Peter Gianas posthumously received an award (Wendell N. Rollason Award) by the

Florida Rural Health Association.
. Thanked the sheriff for allowing him to join and participate in his townhall meetings.
o Comments made concerning Fire Chief Ben Carter's credentials.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments made in favor of filling the positions.
o Comments made expressing concern with budget cuts that impact public safety.

o Comments made encouraging Mr. Parrish to send citizen complaints to the board as it concerns

operational cuts to his department.
o Comments made supporting employee recognition; recognition of James (Jim) Marburger.

8. SHERIFF REPORTS _ GORDON SMITH, SHERIFF

Sheriff Gordon Smith reported on the following:

o Thanked the commissioners who attended his townhall meetings and for asking for information about

his operations.
. Sought direction from the board on bidding collectively or separately for health insurance and workers

compensation services.
o Addressing health insurance, Sheriff Smith advised that in or around 2010, while shopping for lower

insurance premiums, he was asked to remain on the county's insurance plan as that would keep the

county's insurance rates lower due to a younger demographic of staff members. Remaining on the

county's plan would have increased his budget by approximately $40,000.00. In an effort to keep the

county's overall premiums lower and not increasing his budget, he was advised that the county would

cover these expenses.

DISCUSSION:
o Comments in favor of shopping for insurance as a group for the discounted rate.

Intcrcst exprcssed with exploring ratcs for the county through the Florida Sheriffs Association.

Commcnts FnadC in favor of rcflccting insurancc costS in each budget.

CLERK REPORTS― DENNY THOMPSON,CLERK TO THE BOARD AND CLERK OF THE
CIRCUIT COURT― No reports.

10。 COMPIISS10NERS COMMENTS

Conlnllss10ner Spooner:
●  Reported that ncxt Thursday is National Day of Prayer.

●

　
　
●

9.

Page 12 of l3



April21,2022
BoCC Meeting Minutes

1I. CHAIRMAN COMMENTS
o Questions pertaining to the Sheriff s next townhall meetings.

ADJOURN: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M.

Minutes approved by the BOCC during a scheduled meeting on

IONERS

LERK TO THE BOARD

MINUTES PREPARED BY:

Page 13 of 13

May 19, 2022



 Alachua County Board of County Commissioners 
12 SE First St Gainesville, FL 32601 

 

 
 

 
Bradford County BoCC  
P.O. Drawer B 
Starke, FL 32091                              
 
 
 

Amount Enclosed:__________________ 
 
 
                                                    DETACH AND RETURN TOP PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT        

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS 

 
 

Item Description Comments Quantity Unit of Measure  Unit Price   Total Price 

 
       
Career Source NCF 
Payment No. 1  

DEO disallowed costs 1 Each $56,728.42 $56,728.42 

            
 
 
 

BILLING DATE DUE INVOICE # CHARGES 

05/01/2024 Upon Receipt  2024-00000001 $56,728.42 
               Total Due →  $56,728.42 

 
 
          
 
 

INVOICE DATE DUE INVOICE # TOTAL DUE 

05/01/2024 Upon Receipt 2024-00000001 $56,728.42 

 
Please Mail Payment To: 
Alachua County B.o.C.C. 
Attn:  Finance & Accounting 
12 SE First Street- 4th Floor 
Gainesville, FL  32601 

FOR BILLING INQUIRY: (352) 374-3605 



Page 1 of 1 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BRADFORD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 
 
 
DATE:     June 20, 2024   
    
AGENDA ITEM Bradford Soil and Water Conservation District Presentation 

Regarding Aquatic Plant Removal at the Lake Sampson 
Effluents Into the Sampson River Canal. 

 
DEPARTMENT:    Bradford Soil and Water Conservation District 
 
PURPOSE: Consider removal of aquatic plants at the point where water 

flows out of Lake Sampson into the Sampson River Canal. 
The aquatic plants are currently slowing the flow of water out 
of Lake Sampson when the gates on CR 225 are opened in 
advance of a predicted rain event or when the lake reaches a 
level of 130.63 feet.  

 
ASSOCIATED COST(S):  
 
BUDGET LINE (G/L #):  
  


	6-20-24 Agenda Draft
	AIIS S240502A Timber Ranch FL, LLC and info.pdf
	AIIS Z24-04 Timber Ranch FL., LLC and info.pdf
	AIIS S240502B Timber Ranch FL., LLC and info.pdf
	AIIS Z24-05 Timber Ranch L., LLC and info.pdf
	Sheriff Awards Full Packet.pdf
	4-18-24 minutes full packet.pdf
	AIIS - Meeting Minutes
	4-18-2024 BoCC Reg. Meeting Minutes

	5-16-2024 Minutes Full Packet.pdf
	AIIS - Meeting Minutes
	5-16-2024 BoCC Reg. Meeting Minutes

	AIIS - Anderson Columbia CR 225.pdf
	EMS State Matching Grant Packet.pdf
	AIIS - EMS State Matching Grant DRAFT
	2023-2024-state-ems-matching-grant-awards

	Sheriff - Edwar Byrne Grant Full Packet.pdf
	Alachua-Career Source Payment Full Packet.pdf
	AIIS - Alachua Career Source
	Agreement bw Alachua and Bradford re reimbursement of Disallowed Costs draft v2 05-08-2024
	1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein.
	2. Payment to Alachua County: Bradford County agrees to pay to Alachua County the total amount of $113,456.83, as provided below, to reimburse Alachua County for Alachua County’s advance payment to DEO of Bradford County’s share of the disallowed cost...
	3. Notice.
	4. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective (“Effective Date”) upon approved and execution by both Parties.
	5. Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement may only be amended in writing, signed by both Parties. No waive of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, whether or not similar.
	6. Sovereign Immunity. Nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by either party of its sovereign immunity or the provisions of section 768.28, F.S. Further, nothing herein shall be construed as consent to be sued by third parties in any matt...
	7. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their respective successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties, their respective successors and assigns.
	8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the Parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes (except as expressly provided herein) all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understanding, negotiations a...
	9. Interpretation. The provisions of this Agreement have been carefully and fully negotiated between the Parties, each of which has had equal bargaining power. The terms of this Agreement are to be construed in accordance with their fair meaning and i...
	10. Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State. Sole and exclusive venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the Alachua County, Florida.
	11. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each Party waives its rights to demand trial by jury.
	12. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof and the remainder of this ...

	04-21-2022 - BoCC Meeting Mintues
	Bradford Invoice #1

	BSWCD AIIS.pdf
	AIIS - BSWCD Presentation




